
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
THIRTY-FOURTH SESSION 

Official Records • 

ur-~ARV 
~1979 

UN/SA COLLECTJQ,N 

SU1<IT·.1ARY RECORD OF THE 41st T1EETING 

Chairmal!..: iltr • HURGESCU (Romania) 

later: J'.tr. XIFRA (Spain) 

CONTENTS 

SECOND COH!:UTTEE 
41st meeting 

held on 
Friday, 16 November 1979 

at 10.30 a.m. 
New York 

AGENDA ITEM 70: UNITED NATIOIJS CONFEREliTCE ON SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY FOR DEVELOP!,LENT 

AGENDA ITEM 61~: OFFICE OF THE UNITED NATIONS DISASTER RELIEF CO-ORDINATOR (continued) 

AGENDA ITEM 60: UNITED NATIONS EJWIRONl1ENT PROGRM'Th1E (_~ontinued) 

AGEliDA ITEM 56: UNITED NATIONS CONFERENCE ON TRADE MID DEVELOPMENT ( CO,!l_t_inued) 

ORGA.TIJIZATION OF vlORK 

• This record is subject to correction. Corrections should be sent under the 
signature of a member of the delegation concerned within one week of the date of 
publication to the Chief of the Official Records Editing Section, room A-3550, 
866 United Nations Plaza (Alcoa Building), and incorporated in a copy of the 
record. 

Corrections will be issued after the end of the session, in a separate fascicle for 
each Committee. 

79-58502 

Distr. GENERAL 
A/C.2/34/SR.41 
23 November 1979 

ORIGINAL: ENGLISH 

I . .. 



A/C.2/34/SR.~l 
English 
Page 2 

AGENDA ITEH 70: UNITED NATIONS CONFERENCE ON SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY FOR 
DEVELOPI1ENT (A/COHF .81/16) 

1. Tilr._. da _COSTA ( Secretary .. General of the United Nations Conference on Ecience 
and Technology for Development) said that practically all sectors were satisfied 
with the results of the United Nations Conference on Science and Technology for 
Development. The major visible result had been the Vienna Programme of Action on 
Science and Technology for Development (A/CONF.Bl/16, chap. VII), which contained 
a number of useful reconnnendations for implementation by States and 
intergovernmental organizations. The process of implementation had already begun, 
and many States savr in the Programme a welcome instrument for the development 
of the science and technolo~J sector. Although no spectacular break~throughs had 
been achieved at Vienna 1ri th respect to the transfer of technology, the Conference 
had incorporated in the Programme of Action the points on which it had reached 
consensus, distinguishing them from the issues on which agreement had not been 
reached. The latter should be given priority attention by the proposed 
Intergovernmental Conmittee on Science and Technology for Development, in close 
co~operation w-ith UNCTAD and the Economic and Social Council. 

2. Some States had taken the view that a steady and predictable flow of resources 
for science and technology within the United Nations system could be guaranteed 
only through automatic mechanisms, while others had argued that financing should 
be on the basis of voluntary contributions alone. The Conference had reached a 
compromise reconm1endation, according to 1-rhich initial contributions would be 
voluntary, while the permanent system would be considered without delay through 
the mechanisms suggested in the Programme of Action. What was important i-TaS not 
the level of financing itself, because resources, ho-vrever substantial, -vrould 
ultimately be inadequate. The important point vras that the developed countries 
had recognized that science and technology for development was both a national 
and an international responsibility. 

3. Binclful of the need to improve the unsatisfactory infrastructure for science 
and technology, the Conference had adopted a statement on science and technology 
and the future (A/CONF.Sl/16, annex IV). It had adopted a resolution on women, 
science and technology, the aim of which '\vas to enable women to en,joy the benefits 
of scientific and technological advances. 

4. The Conference had achieved some ;1invisible 1
: results as 1-rell by 9 for example, 

promoting full awareness of the problem of science and technology for development, 
helping to initiate effective dialogue among Governments, the scientific and 
technological community and the users of science and technolo,~, and stimulating 
the design or strengthening of institutional mechanisms. It had encouraged 
comparison and interaction at the subregional, regional, interregional and 
international levels with respect to national problems, experiences and 
aspirations. It had led to a better understanding of divergent positions and 
helped to clarify the very concept of development. It had improved the dialogue 
between developed and developing countries, showing that innovation and change 

I . .. 



A/C .2/31!/STI.l!l 
English 
Pae;e 3 

(Hr._ :J.a_ Costa) 

Hi thin countries and in their mutual relations ivere in the common interest. It had brought about recognition of the fundamental role of science and technology in the establishment of the new international economic order and the preparation of the new international development strate~y. It had secured full reco~nition, at all levels, both of the importance and specificity of science and technology as instruments of development and the need to determine Hhich specific sectors in the developinu; countries best lent themselves to innovation and creativity. 

5. The importance and specificity of science and technoloe;y as instruments for development had dictated the Conference 1 s recommendations on institutional arrangements, which included the establishment of an Intergovernmental Comraittee on Science and Technology for Development (A/CONF.Sl/16, chap. VII, para. 100), 
~he establishment of a specialized secretariat (para. 103) and the improvement of 
cO~~ord.ination amone; the relevant bodies of the United nations system 
(paras. lOll~l09). Contrary to some biased interpretations, the 1vording of the recommendation concerning the specialized secretariat uas perfectly clear and fully in harmony ivith the spirit and the letter of restructuring: parae;raph 103 of the Progrrumne of Action meant that a neu administrative entity -vras required -vrhich 1vould be directly responsible to the Director~General for Development and International Economic Co~operation and completely independent of any 
administrative body other than the horizontal" structures under the Director~ General. The body should operate at the highest possible level, since 
co~ordination needed to be exercised from above, not from below. Only if 
paragraph 103 vras followed to the letter vrould the importance and specificity of science and technology for development be recop;nized, not only at the 
intergovernmental level, but also in the corresponding structure of the 
secretariat. There should be no cries of alarm about the proliferation of institutions and bureaucracies. The mechanisms recommended by the Conference were economical, since they 1vould be financed mainly through resources formerly allocated to the old intergovernraental and administrative bodies. 

6. The Conference had been a success because of the fruitful collaboration among all concerned. Its real significance stemmed from the fact that its 
recorrm1endations did not emanate from individual experts or international bodies, but were the outcome of the very strenuous efforts of the countries themselves. Those recommendations deserved the endorsement of the General Assembly. 

7. Hr ... .0..0~l2Ali (Tunisia), supported by llr. BOUYOUCEF (Algeria), I.:r. D1 ABZAC (Chad), I''Iro BA~ISSA (Democratic Yemen), JTr-~--IcArTTE- (Guinea), Lir 0 NAriiTRA-(I<::enya), Ilir. ABDALLAH (L-ibyan Arab Jamahiriya)) l.rr-:- r~1A.HTIN~DEL-CAHPO U'exico) a'Qd Mr. BUNC (Yug~l~via), said that many delegation~~o;ld--fin~it ~~tremely difficult to make a useful contribution to the debate on item 70, vrhich uas scheduled to begin on the follm·ring Ilonday, because most of the relevant documents 1vere available only in English. The debate should be postponed and the Secretariat should do its utmost to have the documents distributed. in the -vmrkine; languages as soon as possible. 

I o. o 



A/C.2/34/SR.41 
English 
Page 4 

8. :Mr. BAUCHARD (France), supported by :Mr. KINSMAN (Canada), said that the status 
of documentation did not reflect the undertakinGs given by the Secretariat, which 
should give an explanation for the inadmissible delay. 

9. ~tr. CORDOVEZ (Assistant Secretary-General for Secretariat Services for 
Economic and Social Matters) said that the Secretariat simply could not cope with 
the volume of documentation it was required to produce. It was possible that 
action -vrould be taken at the current session to reduce the volume, thus helping to 
ensure timely distribution. The report of the United Nations Conference on Science 
and Technology for Development (A/CONF.31/16) was already available to the 
Committee in English, Spanish and Russian; 400 copies in French were on the way. 
On Monday, 19 November 1979, document A/34/587 would be distributed in all 
languages, with the exception of one section which would be available shortly 
thereafter . 

.AGENDA ITEM 64: OFFICE OF THE UNITED NATIONS DISASTER RELIEF CO-ORDINATOR 
(continued) 

Draft resolution A/C.2/34/L.3T 

10. The CHAIRMAN dre1.;r the Committee 1 s attention to the statement of administrative 
and financial implications of draft resolution A/C.2/34/L.3T (A/C.2/34/L.47 
and Corr .1). 

11. :Mr. EHRMAN (United Kingdom), supported by :Mr. ROSEN (United States of America) 
and Mr. ENOKI (Japan), said that some delegations would welcome an opportunity to 
hold informal consultations 1.;rith the sponsors of draft resolution A/C.2/34/L.3T 
before a formal decision was taken. 

12. Mr. HARKER (Pakistan) said that his delegation, which ••as one of the sponsors, 
would have no objection to deferring consideration of the draft resolution. 

13. The CHAIR~~T said that if he heard no objection, he would take it that the 
Committee agreed to defer consideration of draft resolution .A/C.2/34/L.3T with a 
view to approving it subsequently without a vote. 

14. It was so decided. 

Draft resolution A/C.2/34/L.38 

15. The CHAIRMAN announced that the delegations of Angola, Austria, Botswana, 
Burundi, Cape Verde, Chad, Egypt, France, Guinea, Guinea-Bissau, Jordan, 
Madagascar, Mali, Senegal, the Syrian .Arab Republic, Uganda, the United States of 
America and Yemen had become sponsors of draft resolution A/C.2/34/L.38. 

16. Draft resolution .A/C.2/34/L.38 was approved without a vote. 

I ... 



A/C.2/34/SR.4l 
English 
Page 5 

17. Mr. LAZAREVI~ (Yugoslavia) expressed the deep appreciation of the people and 
Government of Yugoslavia for the assistance provided by the Office of the United 
Nations Disaster Relief Co-ordinator at the time of the earthquake. His delegation 
welcomed the approval of draft resolution A/C.2/34/L.38. 

AGENDA ITEM 60: UNITED NATIONS ElWIRONMENT PROGRAHME (continued) 

Draft resolution A/C.2/34/L.2l 

18. The CHAIRMAN said that the French delegation had become a sponsor of draft 
resolution A/C.2/34/L.2l. 

19. Mr. ICANTE (Guinea), referrine; to the draft resolution introduced by the 
representative of India, on behalf of the Group of 77, on the Plan of Action to 
Combat Desertification: restoration and improvement of the Foutah-Djallon massif 
(A/C.2/34/L.2l), said that everyone was aware of the hardships Africa had suffered 
as a result of drought between 1968 and 1973, particularly in the Sahelian region. 
The Council of Ministers of the Organization of African Unity had set up an Ad Hoc 
Committee in June 1974 to deal with problems caused by drought and other natural 
disasters in the member States of the OAU. The principal task of that Com~ittee 
was to carry out comprehensive studies on the causes of the current drought in 
order to gain a greater understanding of the phenomenon and thus to combat it more 
effectively. The Committee worked in conjunction with the Permanent Inter-State 
Committee on Drought Control in the Sahel (CILSS). It should be noted that in 
1977/78 a recurrence of the drought had affected an area much larger than the 
Sahel: Guinea, Guinea-Bissau, northern Togo, northern Ghana, Benin, Nigeria, 
Cameroon, Tanzania, Sudan and Ethiopia had all been affected in varying degrees. 

20. In his earlier statement on the item under discussion, he had outlined the 
results of a study made by the OAU Ad Hoc Committee of his country's -vrater deficit. 
It was that study that had induced the Council of Ministers of the OAU, at its 
session in July 1979 at l'J[onrovia, to request the Executive Director of UNEP to 
incorporate the pilot project for the improvement and restoration of the 
Foutah-Djallon massif into the transnational project for a green belt south of the 
Sahara, one of the four transnational projects endorsed by the Conference on 
Desertification. The purpose of draft resolution A/C.2/34/L.2l was to have the 
General Assembly support that request. 

21. The aim of the pilot project in question was the integrated biological 
planning of the Foutah-Djallon catchment areas 1-rith a view to stabilizing the flo~-r 
of the African rivers whose headwaters were situated in the massif. Its 
implementation would create a reliable safety valve against the hydrological 
repercussions of drought years in Hest Africa. The Foutah-Djallon massif was the 
source of all the rivers of the Vlest African subregion and was therefore of concern 
not only to his country but also to Gambia, Guinea-Bissau, the Ivory Coast, 
Liberia, Mali, Nie;er, Nigeria, Hauritania and Senegal. 

I ... 



A/C.2/34/SR.41 
English 
Page 6 

22. The CHAIRMAN said that if he heard no objection, he would take it that the 
Committee approved the draft resolution. 

23. Draft resolution A/C.2/34/L.21 was approved without a vote. 

AGENDA ITEM 56: UNITED NATIONS CONFERENCE ON TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT (continued) 
(A/34/15; TD/268 and Add.l) 

24. Mr. XIFRA (Spain) took the Chair. 

25. Mr. OLZVOY (Mongolia) said that the fifth session of UNCTAD and the nineteenth 
session of the Trade and Development Board had demonstrated that the just demands 
of the developing countries for rectification of the international economic 
situation were being strongly opposed by the imperialist and neo-colonialist 
Powers. The demand for a restructuring of international trade and economic 
relations had arisen from the developing countries' realization that the lJestern 
States were pursuing trade and economic policies based on inequality and 
neo-colonialist plundering and on transferring the burden of the economic crises of 
the capitalist world to the shoulders of the peoples of developing countries. It 
was for that reason that the socialist countries welcomed and supported the just 
struggle of the developing countries to establish a new international economic 
order based on democratic principles. At the fifth session of UNCTAD the socialist 
countries had demonstrated their firm support for the efforts of developing 
countries to gain sovereignty over their natural resources and control the 
activities of transnational corporations. 

26. UNCTAD was important because it dealt with questions involving all trade 
between countries with different social and economic systems. Any attempt to 
revise lli~CTAD's mandate would have an adverse effect on its prestige and 
effectiveness. It was essential to have East-vlest trade discussed within UNCTAD, 
because that trade was still being hampered by unjustifiable barriers, such as the 
application of protectionist practices by market-economy countries, the persistence 
of various restrictions on trade with socialist countries, and the use of trade as 
a political weapon. It was unfortunate that agreement had not been reached at the 
Manila session on the resolution on trade between countries with different social 
and economic systems. The situation required a spirit of co-operation and respect 
for mutual interests and the observance of the provisions of fundamental 
resolutions on the subject. 

27. His country supported measures to stabilize commodity markets and the 
conclusion of international commodity agreements. It was unfortunate that the main 
ideas of the Integrated Programme for Commodities were not being translated into 
practice, largely because of obstruction from those who were defending the 
interests of Hestern monopolies, particularly transnational corporations. He 
drew attention in that connexion to the draft resolution on transnational 

I . .. 



A/C.2/34/SR.4l 
English 
Page 7 

(Mr. Olzvoy, Mongolia) 

corporations and international commodity trade proposed by the socialist countries 
at the fifth session of UNCTAD. 'Ihe implementation of the provisions of that 
resolution, which had been referred to the permanent machinery of UNCTAD, would 
greatly improve the prospects for implementing the ideas and proposals of the 
developing countries on commodity trade. 

28. His delegation welcomed the creation of an intergovernmental workin~ group on 
UNCTAD 1s role in the preparation of the new international development strategy. In 
its view, it was by keeping its activities consistent with the General Assernbly 
resolution 1995 (XIX) that UNCTAD could most usefully contribute to the new 
strategy. The strategy should be based on the principles of the United Nations 
resolutions on the establishment of the new international economic order and should 
make provision for far-reaching social and economic changes in the developing 
countries themselves. 

29. Together with other socialist countries, his country vras doing its utmost to 
expedite the preparation of an international code of conduct on the transfer of 
technology, which would be a practical contribution to the establishment of the ne-vr 
international economic order. 

30. UNCTAD had a role to play in alleviating the burdens of land-locked developing 
countries. His delegation had talcen active part in the drafting of UNCTAD 
resolution 123 (V) and urged the secretariat to intensify its efforts to have the 
provisions of that resolution implemented speedily. 

31. UNCTAD must actively support the efforts of the vrorld community to implement 
effective disarmament measures. His delegation welcomed the fact that the subject 
had been included in the agenda of the Trade and Development Board, and believed 
that UNCTAD should intensify its activities in that field; it was obvious that the 
successful solution of any country's economic and social problems depended largely 
on the international political situation. 

32. UNCTAD v s contribution to the implementation of the United Nations Declaration 
on the Granting of Independence to Colonial Countries and Peoples was still 
inadequate, and his delegation called upon the secretariat to take practical steps 
in that field and to report to the Trade and Development Board on the results. 
Moreover, measures should be taken promptly to implement UNCTAD resolution 109 (V) 
on assistance to national liberation movements recognized by regional 
intergovernmental organizations. 

33. In conclusion, his delegation urged that immediate action should be talcen to 
carry out the constructive provisions of UNCTAD resolution 114 (V) on enhancing the 
effectiveness of its activities and improving its organizational structure and 
mechanisms. 

34. Mr. Murgescu (Romania) resumed the Chair. 

I ... 



A/C.2/34/STI.4l 
English 
Page 8 

35. Er. IUSAIF (Iraq) thanl;:ed the Secretary~General of illTCTAD for his opening 

statement on the results of the Hanila Conference, and the staff of DrTCTAD for 

their efforts to solve the economic problems of the developing countries in general 

and the least developed countries in particular. The developed and industrialized 

countries had been able to export the vmrst effects of the economic crisis that 

they ·.rere underc;oin[!, through their unjust economic relations >vi th the developinc: 

countries. The developinc; countries vrere deten'ined to use their hard-von 

political independence to bring about a change in those relations and they had 

made many constructive recommendations for structural changes in the international 

economy designed to promote ·Horld economic development and institute just and 

equitable relations. 

36. Some 15 years had elansed since the establishment of UJIJCTAD, and although 

important decisions had been reached by the international cmmmnity on economic 

matters in the 1970s, in particular at the sixth and seventh special sessions of 

the General Assembly, in practice relatively little had been achieved. In fact, 

objective analysis shmved that the developing countries' economies vrere suffering 

new setbacl\:s and that the gap betHeen rich and poor countries 1ras Hidenint;. The 

failure to achieve structural change in economic relations was the result of a 

lack of political uill on the part of the majority of industrialized countries. 

Indeed, there was a regrettable tendency among the industrialized countries to go 

back on resolutions and decisions in 1-rhich they ha,d concurred. The results of the 

I·;!anila Conference t<;reatly resembled those of earlier sessions: there had been a 

failure to reach agreement on the main issues of interest to the developing 

countries, in particular those set forth in the Arusha Declaration. 

37. Hith rec;ard to the evaluation of the vrorld trade and ecor.comic situation and 

the consideration of measures to facilitate structural changes in the international 

economy, the Iianila Conference had not achieved the results that the developing 

countries had hoped for. no decision had been reached that would foster a 

redi stri but ion of trade 9 improve the developing countries' share in 1trorld 

industrial production and their control over their o-vm natural resources, or offer 

them a greater share in decision-making on international economic matters. 

38. \Tith regard to the institutional issues discussed at the Conference, his 

delegation felt that Ul'TCTAD 9 as a specialized bod;-{, 1vas the General Assembly's 

main instrument for the revieu and follmr-up of issues of 1trorld economic 

development. Greater co~ordination between UHCTAD and the specialized agencies 

1vas therefore called for. UHCTP_D' s role in trade and development on behalf of the 

developinc; countries should be strengthened, 1-rith a vieH to promoting the 

establishment of a nevr international economic order. 

39. The industrialized countries had responded to the vmrld economic crisis uith 

a vrave of protectionist measures, including cartels, price-fixing, and so-called 

voluntary export restrictions and orderly marl;:eting arrangements. Their c;reatest 

im.pact had been on the developin13 countries 1 exports of manufactures and rmv 

I . .. 



f"/C.2/3L!/SD.41 
English 
Pac;e 9 

C-r. 1Jisaif" Iraq) 

materials, and the industrialized countries sbould be called on to take steps to rescind then. Ul'TCTf_D should continue to study carefully t:1e effect of those neasures on the developing countries. Unfortunatel~r, the inDustrialized countries tended to mcLl~e bilateral arrcmcements mnonc; themselves and to shov little interest in the needs of the developinr-: countries, despite the pledges made in the 'L1ob:yo Declaration. The developinc; countries h2"d Elade proposals callin,:; for the renoval of quantitative restrictions on their exports, but fe1,r had been accept eo_. The multilateral trade nec;otiations slwuld be :::ontinued, so that the aiHs and ::_lledc::;es of the Tol;:yo Declaration could be put into effect. 

40. Because it vas convinced of the ir,lportance of restructurinc_, economic relations bet-vreen develo:t_Jing and industrialized countries vith a vievr to the establishment of a nevr international econor.1ic order, his deleGation uas a firm sup:9orter of the Integrated Programme for Corn,lodities in all its aspects. It supported the establishment of the Common Fund and 1-ras in favour of linl:ing the :orices of developing country cornrwdi ty exports to those of the m;:\nufactures and services supplied by industrialized countries, 1vi th a vinr to stabili zinc: the" c::xport earnings of the developinc; countries at just anC:. remunerative levels. It uas also in favour of establishinc; a first an (I_ second 1rindov vi thin the Common Fund. In that connexion, the industrialized countries should folloH the example of the raembers of the Organization of Petroleum ExiJortinc Countries, -vrhich hac"l pledc;ed :;3100 Million to the Common Fund. 

41. The existing international monetary and financial system should be reformed on a just basis, '\·ri th full account beinc; tal:en of the development needs of the developinc; countries. Effective measures should also be taJ~en to :orevent the export of inflation from developed to developing countries. fl. lonc;~term Horld fund should be set up to combat the destructive effects of \Wrld inflation, uhich bore particularly heavily on the developing countries, and the industrialized countries should be reQuired to contribute at an annual rate proportional to the inflation 'l·rhich they e;~ported: the oil--e]~portin::: countries should also contribute to the fund. 

42. ~Iany issues uhich had not been settled at the ilanilc_ Conference ha_d been transmitted to the Trade and Development Board for further consideration. lie urged all countries to co-operate in settline; tr_ose unresolved issues as SlJeedily as possible. 

43. iir. HAJNJ\L (Hungary) sa_id that his country had expected t~1e fifth session of Ul'JCTAD to be an important milestone in the struc:;c:le for the restructurinG of international econoHic relations on a just and de:rn_ocratic basis, and, vi th other socialist countries, had done its utmost to nal:e a uorthuhil~C: contribution to its success. The Conference had adopted useful resolutions on several issues, but far more could have been achieved. His c1elec:;ation deplored, in particular, the failure to adopt resolutions on such in:!Jortant questions as policies and Heasures for restructurinG the -vrorld economy, trade betueen countries ui th different economic and social systems, and transnational corporations. 

I ... 



A/C.2/34/SR.4l 
English 
Page 10 

(Mr, Ha,jnal, Hungary) 

44. His country had unusually strong ties uith the external economy, since more 

than 40 per cent of its national income came from foreign trade. Although its major 

trading partners were socialist countries, it carried on an active trade with 

developed capitalist and developing countries as well. Since Hungary w-as poorly 

supplied with national resources~ its economy w·as strongly import-oriented; 

15.6 per cent of its imports in 1978 had consisted of raw materials and primary 

products, a fact 1rhich meant that Hungary had an important stake in the 

stabilization of commodity markets. 

45. At both the fourth and the fifth sessions of UiiCTAD the socialist cou..'1tries 

had submitted joint proposals on the normalization of commodity trade. In their 

view, the rr:.ain obstacles to normalization uere the international capitalist 

monopolies, advocacy of the unrestrained play of market forces and the inflation 

besetting the capitalist countries. Ilis delegation favoured the conclusion of 

international commodity agreements, but continued to attach great importance to 

long-term bilateral agreements. The planned economies of the socialist countries 

their external economic activities and their practice of concluding long- and 

mediura-term economic and trade agreements had a stabilizing effect on international 

commodity trade. 

46. The development of trade between countries 1-rith different economic and social 

systems was equally important. East-\,Test trade and trade bet\·Teen socialist and 

developing countries should both be emphasized in UiiJCTAD v s work, 

47. Trade flm.;rs with developing countries formed the most dynamic sector of his 

country's foreign trade and were encouraged by a system of preferential tariffs. 

Hungary 1 s imports of manufactures lvere constantly growing and the scope of its 

agreements on industrial co-operation was i·Tidening. In future, however, it 

expected developing countries to adopt measures designed to facilitate trade 

expansion and to extend to the socialist countries terms no less favourable than 

those accorded to their capitalist trade partners. 

48. Existing opportunities for trade vrith developed capitalist countries had not 

been fully used, and his Government intended to develop such trade, It i<TaS 

unacceptable, however, that certain capitalist countries should resort to 

protectionist measures in an effort to solve problems caused by the economic 

cr1s1s. The application of such measures against Hungary adversely affected its 

trade and, indirectly, that of its developing country partners. For that reason, 

his delegation deplored the failure of the fifth session of UNCTAD and the 

nineteenth session of the Trade and Development Board to adopt a mutually 

acceptable resolution on trade betvreen countries with different economic and social 

systems, even though a suitable basis had been provided by the draft resolution 

submitted by the socialist countries. 

49. His delegation shared the view that UNCTAD could make a significant 

contribution to the preparation of the new international development strategy. 

/ ... 



A/C. 2/34/STI .l~l 
:Cne:;lish 
Pae;e ll 

(I ~r. IIa.i nal, Hun;,ary) 

It lool;:ed foruard to the results of the forthcomint;; session of the interc;overnrD.ental 
uorl=ing group vrhich uas to plan UITCTAD 1 s contrilJution to the fornulation of the 
neH strategy. 

50. Hr. VJU/l'ASAARI (Finland) said that the search for neu forms anc1 mechanisr.,_s 
of negotiation heed been a lone:; one 9 Nainly because the international community 
had found it difficult to reach a comn10n understandinc; of the ne~: interdependence 
behreen nations and issues. Throughout the process UNCTAD had served as a foru1n 
for ne::;otiations on a number of issues of vital importance for developinc.; countries. 
His delee;ation firmly believed that UECTAD's capability in those areas should be 
fully utilized. 

51. Despite the chanc;es that h2"d taken place in the international economy, ~rimary 
products and conm10dities continued to occupy an important place in the economies 
of most developing countries. His delec;ation had uelcomed UECTAD 1 s early 
initiative 1vi th respect to the Intec;rated Programme for Commidi ties and the 
understanding on the basic elements of the Common Func1, and it hoped that 
nec;otiations vroulG. soon brine; about the establishment of the Common fund. His 
Goverrunent bad noted 1-rith satisfaction the decision of the fifth session to 
intensify UNCTAD 1 s role in the field of l'rimary products and commodities. The 
Intec;rated Proc;rarmne Hould c;ive UITCTAD an opportunity to deal -vri th the marlcetinc;, 
distribution and processincc; of commodities and tl,ereb:;r to become involved in the 
very structures of the cormnodi ty trade. 

52. UlJCTAD 1 s role ui th rec;ard to the code of conduct on the transfer of 
tecbnolo,s;y bad been crucial. His c1elec;ation bad noted uith concern that the 
United Nations Conference on that subject apiJeared to be deadlocked and 1;.ras 
unlil:ely to reach final agreement. Every effort should be made to enable the 
Conference to cm1plete its uork in the near future. UITCTAD 1 s role uould 
undoubtedly be important in the field of restrictive business practices also. 
His Government lool;:ed foruard to the forthcoming Conference uhich vras to establish 
a ne11 frameuorl;: for international co-o::_,eration in that area. 

53. With regard to UNCTAD;s future uork, he said that resolution 131 (V) 9 uhicb 
called upon UNCTAD to exanine the problems created by protectionism 9 reflected not 
only the nevr inportance given to UlJCTAD but also a ne\·r conceptual 2.pproach to 
structural chane;e in the uorld economy. 

54. One of the lessons of the Second Development Decade bad been that the least 
developed countries bad largely remained isolated from the development process. 
His delegation therefore <:-relearned UNCTAD resolution 122 (V), uhicb contF~ined 
J:lroposals for specific action in favour of land-locked developing countries. 
'l'he proposals should be fully i!nplemented and treated as an important element of 
the nei·T international development strater_,;y. His delegation uelcomed the decision 
of the Trade and Development Board that a bigb-~level intere;overnmental c;roup should 
plan UITCTAD 1 s contribution to the neu strategy. The preparations for tbctt 
Stratec;y uere subject to a strict time-·limi t, and priority should therefore be 
c;i ven to that subject in UITCTAD 1 s 1mrl:. 

I ... 



A/C.2/34/SR.41 
:Cnc;lish 
Page 12 

55. Mr. LIPATOV (Ul\:rainian Soviet Socialist Republic) said that the restructuring 
of the entire system of international economic relations had ac~uired particular 
urgency at a time Hhen the Horld capitalist economy Has continuing to experience a 
severe crlSlS. The discriminatory system of >·rorld capitalist economics was making 
itself increasingly apparent in the spheres of trade and monetary matters and in the 
assimilation by nevrly-independent States of advances in science and technology. 
Similarly, the developing countries continued to find their access to the markets 
of the capitalist vmrld blocked by tariff and other barriers. As the Committee was 
l·vell aware, the economic problems of the majority of developing countries remained 
unresolved, and their baclnvardness in relation to the industrially developed 
countries persisted. 

56. Serious difficulties ln the field of international economic co-operation had 
led to the expectation that the fifth session of WJCTAD vrould take decisive and 
practical steps to brine; about a change in the unfavourable position of developing 
countries vrith respect to international trade. Unfortunately, the hopes lvhich had 
been placed in the Manila Conference had proved unjustified, as many representatives 
had testified in the Committee. The meagre results of that Conference vrere the 
outcome of the reluctance of imperialist circles to exhibit the political 1vill to 
take positive decisions on the restructuring of international trade and economic 
relations. 

57. The socialist countries had made strenuous efforts to devise mutually 
acceptable decisions on those questions. They had submitted a number of important 
proposals at Hanila l·rith the object of ensuring that the Conference achieved 
positive results, including proposals on the role of transnational corpor~tions in 
co~~odity trade and trade in manufactures, on reducing the impact of the activities 
of foreign private capital in the developing countries, on the protectionist 
measures enacted in recent years by major capitalist States, including measures 
against the socialist countries, and on co-operation ivith the least developed 
countries. 

58. The activities of the transnational corporations Here one of the principal 
obstacles to the elimination of diktat and inequity in international trade 
relations. At the fifth session of UNCTAD the socialist countries had expressed in 
their joint declaration their views on the pernicious consequences of those 
activities. The transnational corporations generally controlled all stages of the 
production and sales of rav materials, and their influence distorted the industrial 
development of the developing countries. They retained control over the transport, 
processing, sales and financing of ra1·r materials and inflicted upon the developing 
countries a form of industrialization and economic specialization which, while 
leading to a certain degree of economic development" intensified their dependence on 
the system of capitalist l·rorld economic links. The increasing penetration of the 
economies of the developing countries by the transnational corporations was a 
serious threat to their sovereignty. Horse still, those corporations were creating 
international consortia in Horld markets with a view to averting possible 
nationalization of their individual assets, controlling markets for raw materials 
and manufactures, and eliminating competition. It vras their policy to undermine 
international commodity agreements and the stabilization of prices on 1mrld 
commodity markets. 

I ... 



A/C.2/34/sn.4l 
English 
Page 13 

59. Ul'TCTAD should be more active in studying the adverse consequences of the 
activities of transnational corporations and should promote action to establish 
effective control over their operations and to safeguard the national interests of 
the developing countries in their relations -vrith monopoly capital. The main 
purpose of UNCTAD ~ after all, 1vas to eliminate discrimination and other barriers to 
international trade, and to eliminate all inequality, coercion and exploitation in 
international trade relations. 

60. The representative of CMEA had given a detailed account of the considerable 
increase in trade beti·Teen the developing countries and the socialist States of 
:8astern Europe. The situation with regard to trade betueen East and Hest had not, 
hmrever, sho-vm any significant change, primarily because there were still many 
discriminatory obstacles to the stren{:Stheninc; of trade and economic relations 
betw·een the socialist countries and market-economy countries. He hoped that UHCT"W 
uould take more decisive action to eradicate discrimination from r:ast~Hest trade. 

61. Progress in expanding international trade relations could only come about in 
conditions of lasting peace and international security. n healthy political climate 
was a prerequisite for solving the pressing problems facing the world community in 
the field of international trade and economic activity. The arms race exacerbated 
inflation, diverted considerable resources both from development and from 
international trade, and hindered the solution of social and economic problems. In 
conclusion, he expressed the hope that UHCTAD 1wuld continue its efforts to remove 
the obstacles to the expansion of trade relations betl·reen all countries for the 
benefit of universal peace and progress. 

62. I!Ir. AROCHA (Venezuela) said that in the course of the Committee's proceedings 
at the current session there had been few clearer instances of the existing 
stalemate in international economic relations than the current analysis of the 
results of the fifth session of UHCTAD. The fact Has that no consensus had been 
reached on the basic topic, the evaluation of the 1rorld trade and economic 
situation and the consideration of issues, policies and appropriate measures to 
facilitate structural changes in the 1-rorld economy. Opinion had been sharply 
divided: the developing countries 1-ranted to see necessary institutional changes 
rather than changes in terms of annual grm·Tth rates, It was already abundantly 
clear that structural changes could never be achieved through so-called ''marl~et 
forcesn. 

63. Similarly, there had been no consensus 1vi th regard to the current round of 
multilateral trade negotiations, Such agreements as had been reached 1-rere 
peripheral to the developing countries' fundmnental interests, particularly the 
removal of quantitative restrictions and tariff and non--tariff barriers to 
developing country exports, and 1rhat improvements there had been related only to 
the treatment of tropical products. Similarly, because of opposition from the 
industrialized countries the steps taken on protectionism and structural adjustment 
had been very timid. UNCTAD's action in that field must be strengthened. 

64. Other matters on I·Thich no consensus had been reached Here ;neasures to expand 
and diversify the developing countries' exports of manufactures and 
semi-manufactures and the generalized system of preferences. The hopes of the 

/ ... 



A/C.2/34/SR.41 
:Gnglish 
Page 14 

(i~. Arocha. Venezuela) 

Group of 7'7 for agreement on steps to restructure -.;wrld trade and production, to 

increase the industrial capacity of the developing countries and to enhance their 

share in the trade and distribution of industrial products had lil\:ewise been 

th>rarted by the negotiators from the industrialized countries. The same applied to 

the resolution on international monetary refor1n, to the problem of the indebtedness 

of the developing countries and to the proposals for an effective system of 

international financial co-operation. No agreement had been reached on establishing 

arrangements for multilateral guarantees for investments, or on trade among 

countries uith different economic and social systems. No serious negotiations had 

taken place on the substance of the international code of conduct for the transfer 

of technolocsy. Finally, it had been impossible to reach a compromise -vrith the 

industrialized countries on shipping matters, either on container transport, where 

the developing countries aspired to an equitable share, particularly for their own 

exports, or w-ith regard to financial and technical assistance for shipbuilding in 

developing countries. 

65. The developing countries >-ranted UITCTAD to play a mo:re important role in vrorld 

negotiations and decisions on monetary affairs and trade, among other things, and 

therefore uanted it to have more administrative and operational autonomy 1rithin the 

United rJations system. Hmvever, for the sake of achieving consensus, the proposal 

of the Group of 77 on institutional matters at the fifth session had had to be 

watered dmm considerably. In the circumstances, therefore, it seemed appropriate 

to say that the Manila Conference symbolized the stalemate in international 

economic negotiations. 

66. The lack of any proe;ress in the negotiations within illTCTAD and else-vrhere meant 

that no advance vras being made tmvards any of the necessary changes in -vrorld trade, 

~:noney, finance and development, It vras paradoxical that while Govermnents tall;:ed 

about grovrine; interdependence, in practice their actions 1·1ere increasingly 

independent. That interdependent iTOrld existed only ivithin the precincts of the 

United Hat ions: the real uorld 1vas demanding structural changes instead of talk 

about interdependence. In the real economic vrorld outside the United J:Jations, 

things were happening every day that contradicted \·That l·ras said in the conference 

rooms. l'Jot only did nothine; change in favour of the developing countries but the 

only real progress vras in favour of the traditionally uealthy minority. Instead of 

declining, the developing countries' official public debt was increasing: instead 

of improving, their terms of trade were deteriorating; the developing countries' 

share in value added throughout the imrld, instead of increasing, 1-ras declining. 

And vrhile all that uas e.;oing on, the negotiations -vrere failing. Hhat was serious 

vras that, as the poor countries got deeper into debt, the negotiations intended to 

improve that situation broke dmm. Thus, as in colonial times of debt bondage and 

slavery, many developing countries uould have to toil for years simply to pay off 

their debts to the dominating countries, only then becoming economically free, 

67. Clearly, therefore, the outcome of the i!Ianila Conference iras discouraging. 

The situation heralded a loss of confidence in international negotiations and in 

the capacity of the system to bring about a peaceful settlement of the economic 

conflicts dividing manldnd. That 1ras not to say that the developing world intended 

to beat its fevr ploughshares into swords, but the developed countries should be 

I . .. 



A/C.2/34/SR.41 
:Cne;lish 
Pae;e 15 

( i1r ~ Ar_oc h_a_._. Venez u_e_lit_) 

1mrned that institutional changes Hould have to be made soon. Othenrise the vrorlcl 

might Hell become an economic 11 South Africa 11
, where the growing desperation of the 

developing countries vrou,ld inevitably end in violence and rebellion. 

68. It vas sometintes said, in explanation of the discrepancy between real life and 

the resolutions of the United Hat ions, that the transnational corporations w·ere not 

part of the system~ that they were uorld-oriented, and that public opinion Has 

unavrare of the needs of the third 1-rorld and of the relationship beti·Teen the 

satisfaction of those needs and vrorld peace. If that 1ms the case, it vras hard to 

understand ho¥7 the Governments of the developed countries could allmr such a 

mistal<:en idea of the developin2: countries to e;ain currency, To allou stereotypes to 

take root in public opinion in the developed countries was to do poor service to the 

promotion of the new· international economic order. The creative contribution that 

the developing countries could mah:e Has consistently ignored or underestimated. It 

was to be hoped" in any event, that in future nee;otiators from the developed 

countries imuld shaH greater receptivity to the problems of the developing i·rorld. 

69. There \Tas a limit to human injustice and a physical, if not a moral, limit to 

the continuation of life~styles based on pillaging the earth's finite resources. 

lloreover, the developed vrorld could not go on printing paper n:oney to pay for the 

ravr materials of the developing countries. A ne1-r equilibrium ¥rould have to be 

achieved, therefore, but possibly not through negotiation or, in the short term, 

\·Tithin UNCTAD h·rhere some developed countries refused even to discuss monetary 

matters), but through alternative means, such as the identification and 

establishment of prograrmnes of economic and technical co"operation among developing 

countries, as advocated at the recent meeting of the non·-aligned countries at 

Ilavana and in the iiinisterial Declaration of the Group of TT and as set forth in 

resolution 127 (V), 'l·rhich uas probably the i1anila Conference's most positive 

achievement. Ui.·TCTAD \muld be called upon to play an increasing role in fostering 

co-operation among the developing countries. He \rould repeat once again the 

conviction so often expressed by members of the Andean group in their statements in 

the Committee, that in future it was chiefly by that avenue that pro[;ress should be 

SOUGht. 

70. Hr. ZIHNY (Poland) said that the problems discussed and the decisions adopted 

at the fifth session of UNCTAD had long-term implications and that great caution 

should be exercised in evaluating the results of the Conference. One achievement, 

however, ¥ras the adoption by consensus of a comprehensive resolution vrhich 'I·Tould 

stimulate progress tmrards the implementation of an integrated programme for 

commodities. 

71. The discussions at the lV!anila Conference had dealt 'l·rith other commodity issues, 

such as marketing and distribution and the role of transnational corporations in 

international commodity trade, The question of rampant protectionism had also 

arisen, and had been the subject of particularly heated exchane;es, uhich illustrCLted 

the recognition by all countries that protectionist policies posed a real threat to 

the economies of developing and developed countries alike, The effect of 

protectionism, Hhether in the form of official trade policy or of restrictive 

I ... 



A/C.2/34/SR.ln 
:Snglisll 
Page lS 

(Ilr. Zimny, Poland) 

business practices, 1ms to deny countries a market for their exports. His 
delegation hoped that UHCTII.D Hould make progress in the difficult task of coping 
Hith restrictive business practices, a task complicated by the hidden and sometimes 
even clandestine nature of those barriers to international trade. Private 
discriminatory restraints, of vrhich the transnational corporations uere acknmvledged 
to be masters, ,,;ere not limited solely to the commodity marl~:ets, but affected 
services, technology and the financial markets as vell. He hoped that UNCTAD vould 
give high priority in its activities to formulating recommendations aimed at 
abolishing those practices. 

72. His delegation attached great importance to UNCTAD~s role in connexion with 
trade relations runonc; countries uith different socio-economic systems. It was 
firmly convinced that the over~-all floH of trade betvreen countries with different 
socio-economic systems should be included in the general discussion of trade 
relations. There Has a very close relationship between trade betvreen the socialist 
and the developing countries and :Cast.,\<Jest trade. Experience had shovm that the 
development of economic and trade co~-operation betvreen socialist and developed 
countries produced an expansion in co-operation betueen developing and socialist 
countries. For that reason he urged UNCTAD to implement the principle of 
universality lvhen considering the question of international trade relations. 

73. His Govermnent had recently established guidelines for a 10~-year programme of 
co-operation uith developing countries based on the concept of partnership for 
development. For the first time those guidelines not only applied to trade, as had 

previously been the case, but envisaged comprehensive co-operation in industry, 
science, technology and culture. The guidelines covered the same period as the 
proposed strategy for the third United Nations development decade. His country's 
economic administration, together uith numerous organizations and institutions, 
\Wuld be engaged in implementing the programme. He believed that the expansion of 
econowic co--operation bet1.;reen Poland and the developing countries in accordance vrith 
the nev guidelines \Tould bring about a chanc;e in the patterns of production and 
trade, matters vrhich •·rere of primary concern to the developing countries. 

ORGAEIZATION Of HOTIIC 

7lr. The CEAIBl·IAN sugc;ested that the Committee should postpone its consideration of 
the draft resolutions under item 66 until the :meeting to be held on Tuesday, 
20 november. 

75. It uas so decided. 

The m~eting rose at 1.05 p.m. 


